
 
 

12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399 Phone: (909) 797-5117 
 

 

Notice and Agenda of a Regular Meeting  
of the Board of Directors 

Wednesday, April 1, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER - Pledge of Allegiance 
II. ROLL CALL 
III. PUBLIC COMMENTS - At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Directors 

on matters within its jurisdiction.  To provide comments on specific agenda items, please complete 
a speaker’s request form and provide the completed form to the Board Secretary prior to the board 
meeting. 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR - All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered by the 
Board of Directors to be routine and will be enacted in one motion.  There will be no discussion of 
these items prior to the time the board considers the motion unless members of the board, the 
administrative staff, or the public request specific items to be discussed and/or removed from the 
Consent Calendar.   
A. Minutes of Meetings 

1. Regular Board Meeting - March 18, 2015 
2. Board Workshop - March 24, 2015 

V. BOARD REPORTS 
A. San Gorgonio Pass Water Resource Alliance - Technical Committee and General 

Meeting - March 25, 2015 
B. San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency Nexus Workshop - March 20, 2015 
C. Reports by Board Members 

VI. STAFF REPORT 
VII. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Discussion Regarding Water Facility Capacity Charges for a New Dwelling Unit 
Located at 10556 Bryant Street, Yucaipa - Chris Stark [Director Memorandum No. 
15-028 - Page 17 of 141] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board requires the payment of the 
typical drinking water facility capacity charge for the dwelling unit under 
construction at 10556 Bryant Street, Yucaipa. 

Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Tysa 
Baeumel at (909) 797-5117 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related 
modification or accommodation. 
 
Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the board meeting 
packet are available for public inspection during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second 
Street, Yucaipa.  Meeting material is also be available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us  
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 1 of 141

http://www.yvwd.dst.ca.us/


B. Authorization to Develop a Surplus Recycled Water Exchange Contract Between 
Yucaipa Valley Water District and Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District [Director 
Memorandum No. 15-029 - Page 29 of 141] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board, by minute order, authorizes 
the District staff to develop a draft recycled water exchange and purchase 
contract. 

C. Discussion Regarding the Filing of Application Materials Required to Secure 
Possible Funding for Energy Efficiency Incentives [Director Memorandum No. 15-
030 - Page 36 of 141] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorizes the District staff to 
complete and file the necessary application materials to become eligible to 
receive energy efficiency incentives. 

D. Discussion Regarding Participation in the iEfficient Water Conservation Campaign 
for Fiscal Year 2015-16 [Director Memorandum No. 15-031 - Page 95 of 141] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorizes the District staff to 
continue our participation in the iEfficient water conservation campaign for 
a sum not to exceed $16,917.45. 

E. Discussion Regarding a Claim for Damages Related to a Vehicle Accident on 
September 29, 2014 - Tanya Sharp [Director Memorandum No. 15-032 - Page 118 
of 141] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board denies the claim for 
damages. 

VIII. DIRECTORS COMMENTS 
IX. CLOSED SESSION 

A. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code 54957.6) 
District Negotiator: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Employee Organization: IBEW Local Union 1436-YVWD Employees Association 

B. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code 54957.6) 
District Negotiator: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Employee Organization: YVWD Supervisory Employees 

C. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code 54957.6) 
District Negotiator: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Employee Organization: YVWD Management Employees (Exempt)  

D. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code 54957.6) 
Unrepresented Employee: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

X. ANNOUNCEMENTS  
A. April 7, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  
B. April 15, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting 
C. April 22, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. - San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Resource Alliance 

at the City of Banning 
D. April 28, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  
E. May 6, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting 
F. May 12, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  
G. May 20, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting 
H. May 26, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  
I. May 27, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. - San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Resource Alliance 

at the City of Banning 
J. June 3, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting 
K. June 9, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  

Page 2 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 2 of 141



L. June 17, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting 
M. June 23, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop  
N. June 24, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. - San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Resource 

Alliance at the City of Banning 
XI. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 3 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 3 of 141



 

Consent Calendar 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 4 of 141



MINUTES OF A REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 

March 18, 2015 at 6:00 P.M. 
 
Directors Present: Staff Present: 
 Lonni Granlund, President  

Bruce Granlund, Director 
Tom Shalhoub, Director  
Ken Munoz, Director 

Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Jack Nelson, Assistant General Manager 
John Hull, Public Works Manager 
John Wrobel, Regulatory and Environmental Control 

Manager 
Vicky Elisalda, Controller 
Jennifer Ares, Water Resource Manager 

 
Directors Absent: Consulting Staff Present: 
 Jay Bogh, Vice President  David Wysocki, Legal Counsel 
 
Registered Guests and Others Present: 
 Karen Da Silva, News Mirror 

David Duron, Customer 
Mark Westwood 
Leonard Stevenson, San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 

  

The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley 
Water District was called to order by Director Lonni Granlund at 6:00 
p.m. at the Administrative Office Building, 12770 Second Street, 
Yucaipa, California. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Director Tom Shalhoub led the pledge of allegiance. FLAG SALUTE 

The roll was called and Director Lonni Granlund, Director Bruce 
Granlund, Director Ken Munoz, and Director Tom Shalhoub were 
present.  Director Jay Bogh was absent. 

ROLL CALL 

David Duron discussed information about the closing of San Onofre 
and recycled water use restrictions. 
There were no other public comments. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Director Tom Shalhoub moved to approve the consent calendar and 
Director Ken Munoz seconded the motion to approve the consent 
calendar. 

A. Minutes of Meetings 
1. Regular Board Meeting - March 4, 2015 
2. Board Workshop - March 10, 2015 

B.  Payment of Bills 
1. Approve/Ratify Invoices for Board Awarded Contracts 
2. Ratify General Expenses for February 2015 

The motion was approved by the following vote: 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 1 of 4 



Director Jay Bogh - Absent 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Ken Munoz - Yes  
Director Tom Shalhoub - Yes 

 

A. Reports by Board Members 
• Directors Tom Shalhoub, Ken Munoz and Bruce 

Granlund reported on the Joint Board Workshop 
between the South Mesa Mutual Water Company, 
Western Heights Mutual Water Company, and the 
Yucaipa Valley Water District held on March 12, 2015 
(No meeting minutes were produced for this meeting). 

• Director Tom Shalhoub reported on the San Bernardino 
County Special Districts Association meeting held on 
March 16, 2015. 

BOARD REPORTS 

No staff report was provided. STAFF REPORT 

 DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

Following a staff presentation by Controller Vicky Elisalda, Director 
Ken Munoz moved and Director Bruce Granlund seconded a motion 
to receive and file the unaudited financial report as presented. 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Absent 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Ken Munoz - Yes  
Director Tom Shalhoub - Yes 

DM 15-020 
UNAUDITED 

FINANCIAL REPORT 
FOR THE PERIOD 

ENDING ON 
FEBRUARY 28, 2015 

Following a staff presentation by Regulatory and Environmental 
Control Manager John Wrobel, Director Ken Munoz moved and 
Director Tom Shalhoub seconded a motion to approve the issuance 
of a purchase order to Burgeson’s Heating & Air Conditioning for a 
sum not to exceed $39,285 and to Miller Electric for a sum not to 
exceed $2,226 for a total project cost of $41,511. 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Absent 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Ken Munoz - Yes  
Director Tom Shalhoub - Yes 

DM 15-021 
AUTHORIZATION TO 

ISSUE TWO 
PURCHASE ORDERS 

FOR THE 
INSTALLATION OF AN 

AIR CONDITIONING 
SYSTEM AT LIFT 

STATION NO. 1 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 2 of 4 



Following a staff presentation by General Manager Joseph Zoba, 
Director Bruce Granlund moved and Director Ken Munoz seconded 
a motion to award a construction contract to Borden Excavating, Inc. 
for a sum not to exceed $287,574. 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Absent 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Ken Munoz - Yes  
Director Tom Shalhoub - Yes 

DM 15-022 
AWARD OF A 

CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT FOR THE 

8TH STREET AND 
WASHINGTON DRIVE 

REPLACEMENT 
PIPELINES 

Following a staff presentation by Water Resource Manager Jennifer 
Ares, Director Tom Shalhoub moved and Director Ken Munoz 
seconded a motion to authorize the Board President to execute the 
attached Agreement for the construction of the Second Street 
Pipeline Project. 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Absent 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Ken Munoz - Yes  
Director Tom Shalhoub - Yes 

DM 15-023 
EXECUTION OF A 
COMPENSATORY 

MITIGATION 
AGREEMENT 

PURSUANT TO THE 
REQUIREMENTS OF 

THE CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF 

FISH AND WILDLIFE 
FOR THE SECOND 
STREET PIPELINE 

PROJECT ACROSS 
WILSON CREEK - 

YUCAIPA 

Following a staff presentation by General Manager Joseph Zoba the 
Board of Directors decided to take no action on this item. 

DM 15-024 
PURCHASE OF 30-

INCH CEMENT 
MORTAR LINED 

WELDED STEEL PIPE 
FOR THE SECOND 
STREET PIPELINE 

PROJECT 

Following a staff presentation by General Manager Joseph Zoba and 
information from Mark Westwood, this item was continued to the 
board workshop scheduled for April 7, 2015. 

DM 15-025 
DEMOLITION OF THE 

BUILDING, BASEMENT 
AND FOUNDATION AT 

35192 CEDAR 
AVENUE - YUCAIPA 

(ASSESSOR PARCEL 
NUMBER 0303-232-17) 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 3 of 4 



Following a staff presentation by General Manager Joseph Zoba, 
Director Bruce Granlund moved and Director Ken Munoz seconded 
a motion to purchase three service trucks for a sum not to exceed 
$137,100. 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Absent 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Ken Munoz - Yes  
Director Tom Shalhoub - Yes 

DM 15-026 
AUTHORIZATION TO 

PURCHASE 
REPLACEMENT 

SERVICE TRUCKS 
FOR THE PUBLIC 

WORKS DEPARTMENT 

Following a staff presentation by General Manager Joseph Zoba, 
Director Tom Shalhoub moved and Director Ken Munoz seconded a 
motion to authorize the District staff to execute contracts for health 
related benefits for 2015-16. 
The motion was approved by the following vote: 

Director Jay Bogh - Absent 
Director Bruce Granlund - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Ken Munoz - Yes  
Director Tom Shalhoub - Yes 

DM 15-027 
MEDICAL INSURANCE 
PREMIUMS FOR 2015-

16 

Director Ken Munoz requested the development of a District policy 
related to the notification of bid availability, emergency repairs and 
preferences for local contractors. 
Director Ken Munoz requested information about how the drinking 
water rates for mutual water companies compares to the recycled 
water rates of the District. 

DIRECTOR 
COMMENTS 

Director Lonni Granlund called attention to the announcements listed 
on the agenda.   

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:25 p.m.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
      
Joseph B. Zoba, Secretary       (Seal) 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 4 of 4 



MINUTES OF A BOARD WORKSHOP 
 

March 24, 2015 at 4:00 P.M. 
 
 
Directors Present: Staff Present: 
 Lonni Granlund, President  

Jay Bogh, Vice President 
Bruce Granlund, Director 
Ken Munoz, Director  
Tom Shalhoub, Director 

Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Jack Nelson, Assistant General Manager 
John Hull, Public Works Supervisor 
Bob Wall, Operations Manager 
Brent Anton, Engineering Manager 
Vicky Elisalda, Controller 
Joe DeSalliers, Public Works Supervisor 
Chelsie Fogus, Engineering Technician I 

 
Directors Absent: Consulting Staff Present: 
 None David Wysocki, Legal Counsel 
 
Guests and Others Present: 
 Vanessa Register, Customer 

David Duron, Customer 
Chris Stark, Customer 
Richard Siegmund, Customer 
Tim Green, Western Heights Mutual Water Company 
David Armstrong, Western Heights Mutual Water Company 
Ginger Bryk, Yucaipa Animal Placement Society 
Nicole Laffey, Yucaipa Animal Placement Society 

 
 
 
I. Call to Order - 4:00 p.m. 
II. Public Comments - General Manager Joseph Zoba recognized the members of the Board 

of Directors and District staff in attendance.   
• Nicole Laffey and Ginger Bryk from the Yucaipa Animal Placement Society 

presented a Certificate of Appreciation to the Board of Directors in recognition of 
the contributions and continued support provided by the Yucaipa Valley Water 
District to the Yucaipa Animal Placement Society. 

III. Staff Report: 
• General Manager Joseph Zoba discussed future meetings with the San Gorgonio 

Pass Water Resource Alliance and the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency. 
IV. Presentations 

A. Overview of the Public Policy Institute of California Report - Policy Priorities for 
Managing Drought [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-044] - General Manager 
Joseph Zoba provided a brief overview of the recently released Public Policy 
Institution of California Report. 

B. Overview of California Drought Conditions and Related Regional Issues 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 15-045] - General Manager Joseph Zoba provided 
an overview of the current drought conditions. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop Minutes Page 1 of 3 



C. Overview of the 2015 California WateReuse Conference [Workshop Memorandum 
No. 15-046] - Public Works Manager John Hull provided an overview of the 
California WateReuse conference proceedings. 

D. Overview of the Recycled Water System Expansion and Expedited Use Plans to 
Reduce the Impacts of the Current Drought Conditions [Workshop Memorandum 
No. 15-047] - General Manager Joseph Zoba provided an overview of the current 
status and possible future projects that would expand the use of recycled water in 
2015. 

E. Overview of the 2015 Imported Water Allocation Strategy by the San Bernardino 
Valley Municipal Water District and Future Conjunctive Use Opportunities 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 15-048] - General Manager Joseph Zoba provided 
information about the availability of water from the San Bernardino Valley 
Municipal Water District and how the purchase of additional water supplies can be 
used for conjunctive use in the future. 

V. Capital Improvement Projects 
A. Status Report on the Construction of a 6.0 Million Gallon Drinking Water Reservoir 

R-12.4 - Calimesa [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-027] - Engineering Manager 
Brent Anton provided an update on the construction activities at the R-12.4 
Reservoir Project. 

VI. Development Related Issues 
A. Discussion Regarding the Installation of a Water Meter for the Construction of a 

Second Residential Dwelling at 10556 Bryant Street - Yucaipa [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 15-050] - General Manager Joseph Zoba and Property Owner 
Chris Stark provided information to the Board of Directors regarding the request to 
waive the payment of water facility capacity charges for the second dwelling under 
construction on the subject property. 

VII. Administrative Items 
A. Authorization to Develop a Surplus Recycled Water Exchange Contract Between 

Yucaipa Valley Water District and Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 15-051] - General Manager Joseph Zoba provided 
information about the surplus recycled water contract with Beaumont Cherry Valley 
Water District. 

B. Review of Energy Network Application Materials to Secure Potential Funding for 
Energy Efficiency Incentives [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-052] - General 
Manager Joseph Zoba provided information about the contract with the Energy 
Network. 

C. Review and Status of the iEfficient Regional Public Outreach Campaign [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 15-053] - General Manager Joseph Zoba provided information 
about the iEfficient outreach campaign for fiscal year 2015-16. 

D. Denial of Claim Related to Vehicle Accident on September 29, 2014 - Tanya Sharp 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 15-054] - Assistant General Manager Jack Nelson 
provided information about the claim for damages from Tanya Sharp. 

VIII. Director Comments - Director Ken Munoz requested water rate information from the 
mutual water companies and the recycled water rates charged by the Yucaipa Valley 
Water District.  Director Ken Munoz also discussed the possibility of a tour regarding the 
manufacturing process for ductile iron pipe this spring. 

IX. Adjournment - The meeting was adjourned at 6:10 p.m.  
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop Minutes Page 2 of 3 



Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

              
        Joseph B. Zoba, Secretary 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop Minutes Page 3 of 3 



 

Board Reports 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 12 of 141



Technical Committee Meeting 
of the 

San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance 
Wednesday, March 25, 2015 at 4:30 p.m. 

 
Banning City Hall Council Chambers 

99 East Ramsey Street, Banning, California 92220 
 

 

1. Call to Order 
2. Public Comments 
3. Reports from the Subcommittees of the San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Resource Alliance 

a. Administrative Subcommittee 

b. Messaging Subcommittee 

c. Recycled Water Subcommittee 

d. Water Conservation Subcommittee 

4. Discussion Regarding the Development of an Alliance Website 
5. Comments by Technical Committee Members 
6. Announcements 

a. Next Meeting Date: Wednesday, April 22, 2015 at 4:30 pm 
7. Adjournment 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 13 of 141



San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance 
Wednesday, March 25, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. 

 
Banning City Hall Council Chambers 

99 East Ramsey Street, Banning, California 92220 
 

 

1. Call to Order 
2. Public Comments 
3. Approval of Minutes 
4. Reports 

a. Technical Committee Reports 
5. Presentations 

a. Presentation of the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 2014 
Joseph Zoba, General Manager, Yucaipa Valley Water District 

b. Member Agency Profile: San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
6. Future Meeting Topics 

a. Alliance Member Agency Profile for April 2015 - South Mesa Mutual Water Company 
b. Other Meeting Topics 

7. Comments by Alliance Members 
8. Announcements 

a. Next Meeting Date: Wednesday, April 22, 2015 at 6:00 pm 
9. Adjournment 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 14 of 141



 

Staff Report 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 15 of 141



 

Discussion Items 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 16 of 141



 

Director Memorandum 15-028 

Date: April 1, 2015 

Prepared By: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Discussion Regarding Water Facility Capacity Charges for a New 
Dwelling Unit Located at 10556 Bryant Street, Yucaipa - Chris Stark 

Recommendation: That the Board requires the payment of the typical drinking water 
facility capacity charge for the dwelling unit under construction at 
10556 Bryant Street, Yucaipa. 

 
On March 2, 2015, the District received a written request to reallocate the water meters providing 
service to property at 10556 and 10560 Bryant Street, Yucaipa.  While the letter from the customer 
requests exchanging the domestic water meter for a non-potable water meter, the request was 
clarified at a recent board workshop to only utilize two water meters (and only charge two water 
facility capacity charges) on the property instead of three water meters (and three water facility 
capacity charges) as originally planned.  This item was discussed at the board workshop on March 
10, 2015 [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-036 and at the board workshop on March 24, 2015 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 15-050].   
 
Summary of Issues 
 
The developer converted a 
property with two existing 
dwellings and two existing 
water meters into an RV 
Storage Facility and one 
rental home.  The two water 
meters originally serving the 
property have been 
replumbed such that one 
water meter provides 
service to the RV Storage 
area mainly for irrigation and 
the second water meter 
provides service for the 
existing dwelling on the 
property.  A third water 
serviceline was installed 
during the construction of 
the RV Storage facility for a 
future rental home when a 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 17 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-028 Page 2 of 12 

new dwelling would be constructed on the property.  A water meter was not installed on this third 
water service pipeline. 
 
The developer has now decided to proceed with the construction of the second dwelling on the 
property.  The District staff considers the new dwelling as a third use on the property (requiring 
the payment of three water facility capacity charges) while the property owner considers the new 
dwelling as a replacement of a previously demolished dwelling on the property (requiring two 
water facility capacity charges).   
 
During the board workshop meetings, the property owner and the District staff agreed that the 
new dwelling under construction will require a sewer facility capacity charge.  Therefore, the 
property will have the following three equivalent dwelling units for sewer: (1) RV dump station; (2) 
the existing dwelling; and (3) the dwelling under construction.  This will result in a total of three 
(3) equivalent dwelling units of sewer capacity to the property and the monthly billing will be 
charged accordingly.   
 
Currently, the District staff does not have an available “credit” for a water facility capacity charge 
for the addtional dwelling under construction.   
 
For the new dwelling currently under construction, the Board of Directors has the folloiwng 
options: (1) require the payment of a water facility capacity charge; or (2) waive the water facility 
capacity charge.  If the Board of Directors requires the payment of the facility capacity charge for 
the new dwelling, a new meter will be installed on the recently constructed third water serviceline 
on the property and the typical monthly fees associated with each water meter will be charged 
accordingly.  If the Board of Directors waives the facility capacity charge for the new dwelling, the 
Board of Directors should also determine if the monthly water charges will include three 
Equivalent Dwelling Units for the property or two Equivalent Dwelling Units.   
 
 
Background Information 
 
Prior to the construction of the 
RV Storage Facility, the 
subject property located at 
10556 Bryant Street, had two 
water meters to provide water 
service to two residential 
dwellings.  In 1988, a 1” water 
meter was installed to serve 
the westerly dwelling.  This 
meter was turned off in 2004 
and subsequently returned to 
service in 2012.  

 
A second water meter was 
installed closer to Byrant 
Street in 1991 and continues to 
provide service to the existing 
dwelling on the easterly portion 
of the property.   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 18 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-028 Page 3 of 12 

The aerial photograph below from 2012 shows the subject property with the two dwellings that 
existed at the time and the location of the Yucaipa Valley Water District Well No. 37. 
 

 
 
To provide for the RV Storage Facility, the developer decided to demolish the westerly home.   
 
In 2013, the District staff drafted a 
Development Agreement (attached) 
but this draft agreement was not 
pursued by District staff or executed 
by the parties since the project 
resulted in the coversion of the two 
existing water meters for the new RV 
facility and the existing home.  The 
development agreement was drafted 
based on the District staff 
understanding of the proposed 
project and representations made in 
correspondence dated June 22, 2012 
stating that the proposed RV Storage 
Facility would be screened from the 
neighbors view by a “living fence with 
lush green vines and a row of Itailian 
cypress trees to create a wall of 
green”.  Since there is no recycled 
water in the area and the RV Storage 
Facility is immediate adjacent to existing YVWD drinking water pipelines, the District staff 
prepared Section 4 of the draft development Agreement to utilize the westerly water meter for use 
on and around the RV storage portion of the property while the other water meter would continue 
to provide service to the dwelling near Bryant Street. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 19 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-028 Page 4 of 12 

Based on recent billing data, the irrigation meter for the RV Storage Facility uses an average of 
37,000 gallons of water per month.  The existing dwelling located near Bryant Street uses about 
5,000 gallons per month.  Neither of these volumes of drinking water are unreasonable for the 
use. 
 

 
 

The developer is now proposing to construct a second dwelling on the property.  The proposed 
dwelling will require additional drinking water system capacity and will be required to pay the 
appropriate water facility capacity charges and sewer facility capacity charges, both for capacity 
related charges and monthly related charges.  
 

 
 
The District received correspondence dated March 2, 2015 stating that the additional dwelling unit 
should not be required to pay an addiitonal charge for drinking water system capacity and that 
the pre-exisitng water capacity should be assigned to the new unit as well as the other uses on 
the property.  A copy of the letter is attached for your review. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 20 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-028 Page 5 of 12 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 21 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-028 Page 6 of 12 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 22 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-028 Page 7 of 12 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 23 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-028 Page 8 of 12 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 24 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-028 Page 9 of 12 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 25 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-028 Page 10 of 12 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 26 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-028 Page 11 of 12 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 27 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-028 Page 12 of 12 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 28 of 141



 

Director Memorandum 15-029 

Date: April 1, 2015 

Prepared By: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Authorization to Develop a Surplus Recycled Water Exchange 
Contract Between Yucaipa Valley Water District and Beaumont Cherry 
Valley Water District 

Recommendation: That the Board, by minute order, authorizes the District staff to 
develop a draft recycled water exchange and purchase contract.  

 
At the board workshop on March 24, 2015, the District staff presented several items related to the 
ongoing drought (Workshop Memorandum Nos. 15-044 and 15-045) and the importance of 
constructing recycled water improvements to enhance our alternative water supply sources 
(Workshop Memorandum Nos. 15-046 and 15-047).   
 
While areas throughout the State are wrestling with the implementation of various drought 
solutions, the Yucaipa Valley Water District has recycled water infrastructure systems in place 
that will allow us to facilitate the construction of a new recycled water conveyance pipeline that 
can reduce the demands on regional water resources by about 2,000 acre feet per year.  The 
new recycled water pipeline would interconnect the Yuciapa Valley Water District’s recycled water 
system with the Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District’s recycled water system.  
 
With the construction of a recycled water interconnection pipeline, the two water agencies will be 
able to share recycled water resources.  Initially, recycled water that is surplus to the needs of the 
Yucaipa Valley Water District customers will be made available to customers in the service area 
of the Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District.  Within the next five years, the City of Beaumont 
will be expanding and adding desalination facilities to their wastewater treatment plant that will 
then be able to produce recycled water consistent with the water quality objectives enforced by 
the Regional Water Quality Control Board.  Therefore, with an interconnected recycled water 
system, the recycled water resources that are surplus to the needs of the Yucaipa Valley Water 
District and generated from the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility can be shared with 
the customers of the Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District.  Likewise, the recycled water 
resources surplus to the needs of the Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District / City of Beaumont 
and generated from the City of Beaumont Wastewater Treatment Plant in the future can be shared 
with customers of the Yucaipa Valley Water District.   
 
This type of exchange agreement is commonly implemented with drinking water supplies.  As the 
drought continues to impact the State and more recycled water systems are constructed, the 
District staff envisions that there will be addtional exchange agreements for sharing recycled 
water resources in the future. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 29 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-029 Page 2 of 7 

 
 
 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 30 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-029 Page 3 of 7 

 
Governor Brown, Legislative Leaders Announce  

$1 Billion Emergency Drought Package 
3-19-2015 

SACRAMENTO - Mobilizing state resources to face another year of extreme dry conditions, 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. today joined Senate President pro Tempore Kevin de León, 
Assembly Speaker Toni Atkins, and Republican Leaders Senator Bob Huff and Assemblymember 
Kristin Olsen to announce legislation to help local communities cope with the ongoing, devastating 
drought. The $1 billion package will expedite bond funding to make the state more resilient to the 
disastrous effects of climate change and help ensure that all Californians have access to local 
water supplies. 

"This unprecedented drought continues with no signs yet of letting up," said Governor Brown. 
"The programs funded by the actions announced today will provide direct relief to workers and 
communities most impacted by these historic dry conditions." 

The legislation includes more than $1 billion for local drought relief and infrastructure projects to 
make the state's water infrastructure more resilient to extreme weather events. The package 
accelerates $128 million in expenditures from the Governor's budget to provide direct assistance 
to workers and communities impacted by drought and to implement the Water Action Plan. It also 
includes $272 million in Proposition 1 Water Bond funding for safe drinking water and water 
recycling and accelerates $660 million from the Proposition 1E for flood protection in urban and 
rural areas. 

"Taken together, this package provides a major boost to our state's efforts to manage the drought 
and strengthen our infrastructure," said pro Tempore De León. "I want to thank the Governor and 
the Speaker for working together to respond to this crisis. It shows how we--as leaders--can get 
things done when we all work together in common purpose." 

"The drought isn't letting up, so we can't let up either," said Speaker Atkins. "This legislation will 
deliver relief to Californians harmed by the drought and help us manage the significant problems 
the drought continues to cause. Since our skies are still clear--our job is too. And making sure we 
meet emergency needs, prepare for short term problems, and advance longer-term projects are 
an important part of that effort." 

"I want to thank the Governor, the pro Tem and the Speaker for inviting us today. We were briefed 
on this proposal just this morning, and so far it sounds like a good approach. We need to review 
the legislation in detail but it seems like a reasonable start," said Senate Republican Leader Bob 
Huff. "Republicans have consistently said that storage is essential for providing a reliable water 
source to all of California for future generations. The Prop 1 water bond that was passed last year 
is a critical step forward in meeting the needs for California's future. There's no question 
California's drought crisis has worsened, as once again we've experienced a dry winter. With the 
hot summer months approaching, it's incumbent on all Californians to be responsible with how 
they use water. It's critical that we act now."  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 31 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-029 Page 4 of 7 

"This emergency drought relief is an important band aid," said Assembly Republican Leader 
Kristin Olsen. "We must move beyond temporary fixes. Projects to increase water supply have 
been hung up in government red tape for decades. I'm glad today we are making decisions that 
help people and look to us all to take real actions on long-term projects so emergency actions are 
no longer needed." 

The Sierra Nevada snowpack, which Californians rely on heavily during the dry summer months 
for their water needs, is at a near record low. The March snowpack measurement came in at 0.9 
inches of water content in the snow, just 5 percent of the March 3rd historical average for the 
measurement site. The overall water content for the Northern Sierra snowpack came in at 4.4 
inches, just 16 percent of average for the date. Central and southern Sierra readings were 5.5 
inches (20 percent of average) and 5 inches (22 percent) respectively. Only in 1991 has the water 
content of the snow been lower.  

Taking action to further strengthen water conservation in the state, the State Water Resources 
Control Board on Tuesday voted to expand and extend an emergency regulation to prohibit 
certain water use, such as washing down sidewalks, and create a minimum standard for outdoor 
irrigation restrictions by urban water suppliers. 

Since last February, the state has pledged over $870 million to support drought relief, including 
money for food to workers directly impacted by the drought, funding to secure emergency drinking 
water supplies for drought impacted communities and bond funds for projects that will help local 
communities save water and make their water systems more resilient to drought. Last month, 
Governor Brown met with U.S. Secretary of the Interior Sally Jewell in Sacramento to announce 
nearly $20 million in federal drought relief for California's Central Valley Project. 

In December 2013, the Governor formed a Drought Task Force to closely manage precious water 
supplies, to expand water conservation wherever possible and to quickly respond to emerging 
drought impacts throughout the state. The following month, the administration finalized a 
comprehensive Water Action Plan that charts the course for California to become more resilient 
in the face of droughts and floods and the Governor declared a drought state of emergency. In 
April 2014, the Governor called on the state to redouble their efforts at combating drought. 

Last fall, the Governor signed legislation requiring local, sustainable groundwater management 
as well as legislation to put a water bond before voters, which won bipartisan approval in the 
Legislature and was approved overwhelmingly at the polls. He also issued an Executive Order 
streamlining efforts to provide water to families in dire need as the extreme drought continues to 
grip the state by making funding available through the California Disaster Assistance Act to 
provide water for drinking and sanitation to households currently without running water. 

Governor Brown has called on all Californians to reduce their water use by 20 percent and prevent 
water waste. Visit SaveOurWater.com to find out how everyone can do their part and 
Drought.CA.Gov to learn more about how California is dealing with the effects of the drought. 

### 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 32 of 141

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/press_room/press_releases/2015/pr031715_renewed_emergency_wtr_regs.pdf
http://gov.ca.gov/news.php?id=18415
http://www.doi.gov/news/pressreleases/secretary-jewell-announces-50-million-for-western-drought-response.cfm
http://gov.ca.gov/docs/12.17.13_Drought_Task_Force.pdf
http://resources.ca.gov/docs/california_water_action_plan/Final_California_Water_Action_Plan.pdf
http://gov.ca.gov/news.php?id=18368
http://gov.ca.gov/news.php?id=18495
http://gov.ca.gov/news.php?id=18701
http://gov.ca.gov/news.php?id=18653
http://gov.ca.gov/news.php?id=18712
http://www.saveourwater.com/
http://ca.gov/drought/


Director Memorandum No. 15-029 Page 5 of 7 

 
 

Brown proposes $1 billion in drought spending 
 

 

As California copes with a fourth straight year of drought, Gov. Jerry Brown and legislative leaders on 
Thursday proposed legislation to accelerate more than $1 billion in water spending and urged residents to 
do their part to conserve. 

Winter is ending without enough snow and rain to replenish reservoirs, offering little relief from the worst 
drought in a generation. 

Santa Clarita Valley water officials Thursday were already reviewing the proposed legislation. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 33 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-029 Page 6 of 7 

“We are looking into the details to see if we might qualify,” said Dirk Marks, water resource manager for 
the Castaic Lake Water Agency. 

Keith Abercrombie, general manager of the Valencia Water Company, said: “At this time we are still 
reviewing the requirements for projects that would be subject to this proposal to determine if we have any 
projects that would be good candidates.” 

The proposed legislation includes $128 million to ease dire water shortages in some communities; the 
financial struggles of unemployed farm workers in the Central Valley; and dry conditions that contribute 
to wildfires. 

The rest of the funding comes from voter-approved bonds — including a $7.5 billion water measure passed 
in November — to speed up water projects that can help communities prepare for future dry years. 

“We need to get the money out the door now for shovel-ready projects and existing water programs that 
only need funding to get started,” Senate President Pro Tem Kevin de Leon said. “No delay. No red tape.” 

Two such projects are already standing by at the Newhall County Water District, General Manager Steve 
Cole said Thursday. 

“We have two shovel-ready projects, called the Recycled Water Phases 2-A and 2-C,” Cole said. “One 
project brings recycled water to the area near College of the Canyons; the other involves a (water) 
connection to Central Park.” 

Nearly two-thirds of the legislative package funds would go to improve flood control structures by using 
leftover money from a 2006 voter-approved bond measure. 

Lawmakers said climate change is contributing to sudden floods — even in dry years — and flood 
protection protects drinking water supplies. 

“We maximize the water we do have if we can direct the flood waters in a way that’s safe for communities,” 
said Assemblyman Marc Levine, a San Rafael Democrat who chairs a water committee. 

More immediate funding includes $20 million for additional emergency drinking water for communities 
with dry wells; $24 million for food banks; and $16 million to help fish and animals threatened by vanishing 
streams and rivers. 

Unemployment in the agricultural Central Valley has reached 14 percent and domestic wells are running 
dry in a handful of parched communities such as East Porterville, where the state has already spent $500,000 
to provide bottled water for 290 families. 

Brown said the drought has highlighted fundamental questions about how the state uses water and will 
require Californians to adopt innovative solutions. 

“Growing a walnut or an almond takes water. Having a new house with a bunch of toilets and showers takes 
water,” Brown said. “So how do we balance use and efficiency with the kind of life that people want in 
California?” 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 34 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-029 Page 7 of 7 

The measures are expected to come for a vote within a week and will need majority approval from the state 
Legislature, which is controlled by Democrats. 

Republican legislative leaders joined Brown at a news conference supporting the bills Thursday but were 
not involved in crafting the proposals. 

Such spending is normally approved as part of budget negotiations that last through June, but lawmakers 
said their action will help kick-start the projects sooner. 

The plan is labeled as emergency legislation, but much of the funding has been available to the state for 
years. It could take more than a year for some of the projects to produce a noticeable increase in water 
supplies. 

“This is a Band-Aid,” said Assembly Minority Leader Kristin Olsen, a Modesto-area Republican. “This is 
a temporary small step toward fixing a monumental problem.” 

The water in the Sierra Nevada snowpack — California’s largest water source — is far below normal. Some 
drought observers fear it may never return to normal, requiring a fundamental change to California water 
policy. 

Continuing dry conditions drove state water regulators to ramp up mandatory water restrictions this week 
that prevent Californians from watering their lawns daily and require that customers ask for water at 
restaurants rather than having it automatically served. 

Critics have questioned whether the measures go far enough given the severity of the drought. 

Brown said he’s prepared to ramp up action if the drought gets worse. 

“Don’t have any doubts. We are going to increasingly control the use of water to the point where you have 
to get a lot more efficient, it’s going to be expensive and everyone has got to do their part, and they will,” 
Brown said. 

The water-spending legislation came a year after Brown signed a $687 million drought-relief package, most 
of which went to accelerate water infrastructure projects. A third of that funding has still not been allocated, 
and the Department of Water Resources has not yet recommended how the money should be spent. 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 35 of 141



 

Director Memorandum 15-030 

Date: April 1, 2015 

Prepared By: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Discussion Regarding the Filing of Application Materials Required to 
Secure Possible Funding for Energy Efficiency Incentives 

Recommendation: That the Board authorizes the District staff to complete and file the 
necessary application materials to become eligible to receive 
energy efficiency incentives. 

 
On February 24, 2015, the Board of Directors received recommendations from a Water and Sewer 
System Energy Efficiency Audit of District facilities conducted by representatives from the Energy 
Network [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-023].  The Energy Network is a third-party engineering 
consultant firm, authorized by the California Public Utilities Commission, to assist residents, 
businesses, and the public sector to achieve energy savings.  At no cost to the District, Lincus 
and the Energy Network performed an audit of District facilities with input and participation by 
District staff members.   
 
The Energy Network has prepared an application packet on behalf of the District in order to secure 
the rebate incentives in addition to the on-bill financing application option.  There is no 
commitment to go forward with the energy upgrades at this phase of the project, it is merely to 
secure the incentives.  The following information is attached for your review: 
 

• Henry R. Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility Feasibility Study - Page 2 of 59 
• Water System Optimization Feasibility Study - Page 20 of 59 
• Southern California Edison Customer Agreement  - 35 of 59 
• On-Bill Financing Application - 43 of 59 

 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 36 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 2 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 37 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 3 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 38 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 4 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 39 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 5 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 40 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 6 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 41 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 7 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 42 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 8 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 43 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 9 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 44 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 10 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 45 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 11 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 46 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 12 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 47 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 13 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 48 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 14 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 49 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 15 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 50 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 16 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 51 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 17 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 52 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 18 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 53 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 19 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 54 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 20 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 55 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 21 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 56 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 22 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 57 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 23 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 58 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 24 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 59 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 25 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 60 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 26 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 61 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 27 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 62 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 28 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 63 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 29 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 64 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 30 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 65 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 31 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 66 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 32 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 67 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 33 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 68 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 34 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 69 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 35 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 70 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 36 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 71 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 37 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 72 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 38 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 73 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 39 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 74 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 40 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 75 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 41 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 76 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 42 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 77 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 43 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 78 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 44 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 79 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 45 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 80 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 46 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 81 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 47 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 82 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 48 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 83 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 49 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 84 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 50 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 85 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 51 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 86 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 52 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 87 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 53 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 88 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 54 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 89 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 55 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 90 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 56 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 91 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 57 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 92 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 58 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 93 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-030 Page 59 of 59 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 94 of 141



 

Director Memorandum 15-031 

Date: April 1, 2015 

Prepared By: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Discussion Regarding Participation in the iEfficient Water Conservation 
Campaign for Fiscal Year 2015-16 

Recommendation: That the Board authorizes the District staff to continue our 
participation in the iEfficient water conservation campaign for a 
sum not to exceed $16,917.45. 

 
At the June 4, 2014 Board Meeting, the Board of Directors approved $12,260 for the participation 
in the Regional Coordinated Public Outreach Program for the dissemination of drought and water 
conservation information also known as the iEfficient campaign.  [Director Memorandum No. 14-
044] 
 
A portion of the expenses were dedicated to a post survey to determine effectiveness of the 
campaign.  In six months the campaign achieved nearly 20% awareness among the population 
throughout the Inland Empire.  The Basin Technical Advisory Water Conservation Sub-committee 
would like to extend the regional campaign into the 2015-2016 fiscal year.    
 
CV Strategies, the public outreach firm hired to run the campaign, developed three levels of 
commitment to the campaign, Bronze, Silver or Gold.  The consensus of the BTAC Water 
Conservation Committee was to participate at the Silver level.  San Bernardino Valley Municipal 
Water District is expected to participate with a contribution of 25% of the total regional 
conservation campaign.  The cost sharing table is attached for your review.  
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 95 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-031 Page 2 of 23 

BTAC iEfficient Public Outreach Campaign – Cost Sharing Expenses 
 
 
Regional Agencies Participation 

Regional Agency Total 
San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District $129,348 
Western Municipal Water District $45,000 
San Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District $10,000 
Total Regional Agency Portion $184,348 

 
 
Retail Agency Share of Balance 

 
 
 

Retail Agency Population % 
Population Equal (50%) Proportioned by 

Population (50%) TOTAL 

COLTON, CITY OF  47,429  4%  $10,407.60  $6,000.14  $16,407.75  
CORONA DEPT. OF WATER & POWER  150,000  11%  $10,407.60  $18,976.19  $29,383.79  
EAST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT  63,055  5%  $10,407.60  $7,976.96  $18,384.56  
ELSINORE VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DIST.  122,500  9%  $10,407.60  $15,497.22  $25,904.82  
JURUPA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  107,000  8%  $10,407.60  $13,536.35  $23,943.95  
LEE LAKE WATER DISTRICT   0%  $10,407.60  ‐$  $10,407.60  
LOMA LINDA  12,206  1%  $10,407.60  $1,544.16  $11,951.76  
NORCO, CITY OF  26,626  2%  $10,407.60  $3,368.40  $13,776.00  
REDLANDS, CITY OF  77,852  6%  $10,407.60  $9,848.90  $20,256.50  
RIALTO WATER SERVICES  48,623  4%  $10,407.60  $6,151.19  $16,558.80  
RIVERSIDE HIGHLAND WATER COMPANY  16,000  1%  $10,407.60  $2,024.13  $12,431.73  
RIVERSIDE PUBLIC UTILITIES  295,000  22%  $10,407.60  $37,319.84  $47,727.44  
RUBIDOUX COMMUNITY SERVICES DIST.  26,000  2%  $10,407.60  $3,289.21  $13,696.81  
SAN BERNARDINO  204,366  16%  $10,407.60  $25,853.92  $36,261.52  
WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT  68,179  5%  $10,407.60  $8,625.18  $19,032.79  
YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT  51,458  4%  $10,407.60  $6,509.84  $16,917.45  
TOTALS  1,316,294  100%  $166,521.63  $166,521.63  $ 333,043 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 96 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-031 Page 3 of 23 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 97 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-031 Page 4 of 23 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 98 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-031 Page 5 of 23 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 99 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-031 Page 6 of 23 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 100 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-031 Page 7 of 23 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 101 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-031 Page 8 of 23 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 102 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-031 Page 9 of 23 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 103 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-031 Page 10 of 23 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 104 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-031 Page 11 of 23 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 105 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-031 Page 12 of 23 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 106 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-031 Page 13 of 23 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 107 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-031 Page 14 of 23 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 108 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-031 Page 15 of 23 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 109 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-031 Page 16 of 23 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 110 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-031 Page 17 of 23 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 111 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-031 Page 18 of 23 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 112 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-031 Page 19 of 23 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 113 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-031 Page 20 of 23 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 114 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-031 Page 21 of 23 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 115 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-031 Page 22 of 23 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 116 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-031 Page 23 of 23 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 117 of 141



 

Director Memorandum 15-032 

Date: April 1, 2015 

Prepared By: Jack Nelson, Assistant General Manager 

Subject: Discussion Regarding Claim for Damages Related to a Vehicle 
Accident on September 29, 2014 - Tanya Sharp 

Recommendation: That the Board denies the claim for damages. 

 
On March 17, 2015, the Yucaipa Valley Water District received a claim from the Law Office of 
Larry Parker of behalf of Tanya Sharp for an unspecified amount for a vehicle accident that 
occurred on September 29, 2014 on Canterbury Court, Yucaipa.   
 
There was no supporting information or costs submitted with the claim (attached) when it was 
received by the District.   
 
The District incident report, police report, and other supporting documents compiled by the District 
at the time of the accident are also attached.  Copies of these documents have been forwarded 
to the District’s insurance carrier. 
 
Based upon the information provided, District staff recommends denial of the claim. 
 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 118 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-032 Page 2 of 16 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 119 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-032 Page 3 of 16 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 120 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-032 Page 4 of 16 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 121 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-032 Page 5 of 16 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 122 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-032 Page 6 of 16 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 123 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-032 Page 7 of 16 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 124 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-032 Page 8 of 16 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 125 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-032 Page 9 of 16 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 126 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-032 Page 10 of 16 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 127 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-032 Page 11 of 16 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 128 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-032 Page 12 of 16 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 129 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-032 Page 13 of 16 
 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 130 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-032 Page 14 of 16 
 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 131 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-032 Page 15 of 16 
 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 132 of 141



Director Memorandum No. 15-032 Page 16 of 16 
 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 133 of 141



 

 

Director Comments 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 134 of 141



June 2014 
 

 
 

FACTS ABOUT THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 
Service Area Size: 40 square miles (sphere of influence is 68 square miles) 
 
Elevation Change: 3,140 foot elevation change (from 2,044 to 5,184 feet) 
 
Number of Employees: 5 elected board members 

57 full time employees 
 
Operating Budget: Water Division - $13,072,750  
 Sewer Division - $11,689,000 
 Recycled Water Division - $433,500 
 Total Annual Budget - $25,195,250 
 
Number of Services: 12,206 water connections serving 16,843 units 

13,492 sewer connections serving 20,312 units 
62 recycled water connections 

 
Water System: 215 miles of drinking water pipelines 

27 reservoirs - 34 million gallons of storage capacity 
18 pressure zones 
12,000 ac-ft annual water demand (3.9 billion gallons) 
Two water filtration facilities: 

- 1 mgd at Oak Glen Surface Water Filtration Facility 
- 12 mgd at Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 

 
Sewer System: 8.0 million gallon treatment capacity - current flow at 4.0 mgd 

205 miles of sewer mainlines 
5 sewer lift stations 
4,500 ac-ft annual recycled water prod. (1.46 billion gallons) 

 
Recycled Water: 22 miles of recycled water pipelines 

5 reservoirs - 12 million gallons of storage 
1,200 ac-ft annual recycled demand (0.4 billion gallons) 

 
Brine Disposal:  2.2 million gallon desalination facility at sewer treatment plant 

1.108 million gallons of Inland Empire Brine Line capacity 
0.295 million gallons of treatment capacity in Orange County  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 135 of 141



June 2014 
 

 

 
  

THE MEASUREMENT OF WATER PURITY 
 
One part per hundred is generally represented by the percent (%).  

This is equivalent to about fifteen minutes out of one day. 
 
One part per thousand denotes one part per 1000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about one and a half minutes out of one day. 
 
One part per million (ppm) denotes one part per 1,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about 32 seconds out of a year. 
 
One part per billion (ppb) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000 parts.   

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of a century. 
 
One part per trillion (ppt) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000 parts. 

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of every hundred thousand years. 
 
One part per quadrillion (ppq) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about two and a half minutes out of the age of the Earth (4.5 
billion years).  

 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 136 of 141



June 2014 
 

 
  

GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED TERMS 
 
Every profession has specialized terms which generally evolve to facilitate communication between individuals.  
The routine use of these terms tends to exclude those who are unfamiliar with the particular specialized language 
of the group.  Sometimes jargon can create communication cause difficulties where professionals in related fields 
use different terms for the same phenomena. 

Below are commonly used water terms and abbreviations with commonly used definitions.  If there is any 
discrepancy in definitions, the District's Regulations Governing Water Service is the final and binding definition.  

 

Acre Foot of Water - The volume of water (325,850 gallons, or 43,560 cubic feet) that would cover an area of 
one acre to a depth of 1 foot.  

Activated Sludge Process – A secondary biological sewer treatment process where bacteria reproduce at a 
high rate with the introduction of excess air or oxygen, and consume dissolved nutrients in the wastewater. 

Annual Water Quality Report - The document is prepared annually and provides information on water quality, 
constituents in the water, compliance with drinking water standards and educational material on tap water.  It is 
also referred to as a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR).  

Aquifer - The natural underground area with layers of porous, water-bearing materials (sand, gravel) capable of 
yielding a supply of water; see Groundwater basin.  

Backflow - The reversal of water's normal direction of flow.  When water passes through a water meter into a 
home or business it should not reverse flow back into the water mainline.  

Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Methods or techniques found to be the most effective and practical 
means in achieving an objective.  Often used in the context of water conservation.  

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) – The amount of oxygen used when organic matter undergoes 
decomposition by microorganisms.  Testing for BOD is done to assess the amount of organic matter in water. 

Biosolids – Biosolids are nutrient rich organic and highly treated solid materials produced by the sewer treatment 
process.  This high-quality product can be used as a soil amendment on farm land or further processed as an 
earth-like product for commercial and home gardens to improve and maintain fertile soil and stimulate plant 
growth. 

Catch Basin – A chamber usually built at the curb line of a street, which conveys surface water for discharge 
into a storm sewer. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) – Projects for repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of assets.  Also 
includes treatment improvements, additional capacity, and projects for the support facilities. 

Collector Sewer – The first element of a wastewater collection system used to collect and carry wastewater 
from one or more building sewer laterals to a main sewer. 

Coliform Bacteria – A group of bacteria found in the intestines of humans and other animals, but also 
occasionally found elsewhere and is generally used as an indicator of sewage pollution.   

Combined Sewer Overflow – The portion of flow from a combined sewer system, which discharges into a water 
body from an outfall located upstream of a wastewater treatment plant, usually during wet weather conditions. 

Combined Sewer System– Generally older sewer systems designed to convey both sewage and storm water 
into one pipe to a wastewater treatment plant. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 137 of 141



June 2014 
 

Conjunctive Use - The coordinated management of surface water and groundwater supplies to maximize the 
yield of the overall water resource.  Active conjunctive use uses artificial recharge, where surface water is 
intentionally percolated or injected into aquifers for later use.  Passive conjunctive use is to simply rely on surface 
water in wet years and use groundwater in dry years. 

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) - see Annual Water Quality Report.  

Cross-Connection - The actual or potential connection between a potable water supply and a non-potable 
source, where it is possible for a contaminant to enter the drinking water supply. 

Disinfection By-Products (DBPs) - The category of compounds formed when disinfectants in water systems 
react with natural organic matter present in the source water supplies.  Different disinfectants produce different 
types or amounts of disinfection byproducts. Disinfection byproducts for which regulations have been established 
have been identified in drinking water, including trihalomethanes, haloacetic acids, bromate, and chlorite 

Drought - a period of below average rainfall causing water supply shortages.  

Dry Weather Flow – Flow in a sanitary sewer during periods of dry weather in which the sanitary sewer is under 
minimum influence of inflow and infiltration. 

Fire Flow - The ability to have a sufficient quantity of water available to the distribution system to be delivered 
through fire hydrants or private fire sprinkler systems.  

Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) - A measurement of the average number of gallons of water use by the 
number of people served each day in a water system. The calculation is made by dividing the total gallons of 
water used each day by the total number of people using the water system.  

Groundwater Basin - An underground body of water or aquifer defined by physical boundaries.  

Groundwater Recharge - The process of placing water in an aquifer.  Can be a naturally occurring process or 
artificially enhanced.  

Hard Water - Water having a high concentration of minerals, typically calcium and magnesium ions.  

Hydrologic Cycle - The process of evaporation of water into the air and its return to earth in the form of 
precipitation (rain or snow).  This process also includes transpiration from plants, percolation into the ground, 
groundwater movement, and runoff into rivers, streams and the ocean; see Water cycle.  

Infiltration – Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and/or building laterals from the ground 
through defective pipes, pipe joints, connections, or manholes.  Infiltration does not include inflow.  See Inflow. 

Inflow - Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and building sewer from sources such as roof 
vents, yard drains, area drains, foundation drains, drains from springs and swampy areas, manhole covers, cross 
connections between storm drains and sanitary sewers, catch basins, cooling towers, storm waters, surface 
runoff, street wash waters, or drainage.  Inflow does not include infiltration.  See Infiltration. 

Inflow / Infiltration (I/I) – The total quantity of water from both inflow and infiltration. 

Mains, Distribution - A network of pipelines that delivers water (drinking water or recycled water) from 
transmission mains to residential and commercial properties, usually pipe diameters of 4" to 16".  

Mains, Transmission - A system of pipelines that deliver water (drinking water or recycled water) from a source 
of supply the distribution mains, usually pipe diameters of greater than 16".  

Meter - A device capable of measuring, in either gallons or cubic feet, a quantity of water delivered by the District 
to a service connection.  

Overdraft - The pumping of water from a groundwater basin or aquifer in excess of the supply flowing into the 
basin. This pumping results in a depletion of the groundwater in the basin which has a net effect of lowering the 
levels of water in the aquifer.  

Peak Flow – The maximum flow that occurs over a specific length of time (e.g., daily, hourly, instantaneously). 

Pipeline - Connected piping that carries water, oil or other liquids.  See Mains, Distribution and Mains, 
Transmission. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 138 of 141



June 2014 
 

Point of Responsibility, Metered Service - The connection point at the outlet side of a water meter where a 
landowner's responsibility for all conditions, maintenance, repairs, use and replacement of water service facilities 
begins, and the District's responsibility ends.  

Potable Water - Water that is used for human consumption and regulated by the California Department of Public 
Health.  

Pressure Reducing Valve - A device used to reduce the pressure in a domestic water system when the water 
pressure exceeds desirable levels.  

Pump Station - A drinking water or recycled water facility where pumps are used to push water up to a higher 
elevation or different location.  

Reservoir - A water storage facility where water is stored to be used at a later time for peak demands or 
emergencies such as fire suppression.  Drinking water and recycled water systems will typically use concrete or 
steel reservoirs.  The State Water Project system considers lakes, such as Shasta Lake and Folsom Lake to be 
water storage reservoirs. 

Runoff - Water that travels downward over the earth's surface due to the force of gravity.  It includes water 
running in streams as well as over land.  

Sanitary Sewer System - Sewer collection system designed to carry sewage, consisting of domestic, 
commercial, and industrial wastewater. This type of system is not designed nor intended to carry water from 
rainfall, snowmelt, or groundwater sources.  See Combined Sewer System. 

Sanitary Sewer Overflow – Overflow from a sanitary sewer system caused when total wastewater flow exceeds 
the capacity of the system.  See Combined Sewer Overflow. 

Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI) Line – A regional brine line designed to convey 30 million gallons per day 
of non-reclaimable wastewater from the upper Santa Ana River basin to the sewer treatment plant operated by 
Orange County Sanitation District. 

Secondary Treatment – Biological sewer treatment, particularly the activated-sludge process, where bacteria 
and other microorganisms consume dissolved nutrients in wastewater. 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) - A computerized system which provides the ability to 
remotely monitor and control water system facilities such as reservoirs, pumps and other elements of water 
delivery.  

Service Connection - The water piping system connecting a customer's system with a District water main 
beginning at the outlet side of the point of responsibility, including all plumbing and equipment located on a parcel 
required for the District's provision of water service to that parcel.  

Sludge – Untreated solid material created by the treatment of sewage. 

Smart Irrigation Controller - A device that automatically adjusts the time and frequency which water is applied 
to landscaping based on real-time weather such as rainfall, wind, temperature and humidity.  

Special District - A political subdivision of a state established to provide a public services, such as water supply 
or sanitation, within a specific geographic area.   

Surface Water - Water found in lakes, streams, rivers, oceans or reservoirs behind dams.  

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) – The amount of solids floating and in suspension in water or sewage. 

Transpiration - The process by which water vapor is released into the atmosphere by living plants.  

Trickling Filter – A biological secondary treatment process in which bacteria and other microorganisms, growing 
as slime on the surface of rocks or plastic media, consume nutrients in primary treated sewage as it trickles over 
them. 

Underground Service Alert (USA) - A free service that notifies utilities such as water, telephone, cable and 
sewer companies of pending excavations within the area (dial 8-1-1 at least 2 working days before you dig).  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 139 of 141



June 2014 
 

Urban Runoff - Water from city streets and domestic properties that typically carries pollutants into the storm 
drains, rivers, lakes, and oceans. 

Valve - A device that regulates, directs or controls the flow of water by opening, closing or partially obstructing 
various passageways.  

Wastewater – Any water that enters the sanitary sewer. 

Water Banking - The practice of actively storing or exchanging in-lieu surface water supplies in available 
groundwater basin storage space for later extraction and use by the storing party or for sale or exchange to a 
third party.  Water may be banked as an independent operation or as part of a conjunctive use program.  

Water cycle - The continuous movement water from the earth's surface to the atmosphere and back again; see 
Hydrologic cycle.  

Water Pressure - Pressure created by the weight and elevation of water and/or generated by pumps that deliver 
water to the tap.  

Water Service Line - The pipeline that delivers potable water to a residence or business from the District's water 
system.  Typically the water service line is a 1” to 1½” diameter pipe for residential properties.  

Watershed - A region or land area that contributes to the drainage or catchment area above a specific point on 
a stream or river.  

Water Table - The upper surface of the zone of saturation of groundwater in an unconfined aquifer.  

Water Transfer - A transaction, in which a holder of a water right or entitlement voluntarily sells/exchanges to a 
willing buyer the right to use all or a portion of the water under that water right or entitlement.  

Water Well - A hole drilled into the ground to tap an underground water aquifer.  

Wetlands - Lands which are fully saturated or under water at least part of the year, like seasonal vernal pools 
or swamps.  

Wet Weather Flow – Dry weather flow combined with stormwater introduced into a combined sewer system, 
and dry weather flow combined with infiltration/inflow into a separate sewer system. 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 140 of 141



June 2014 
 

 
  

COMMONLY USED ABBREVIATIONS 
 

AQMD Air Quality Management District 

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

CARB California Air Resources Board 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television 

CWA Clean Water Act 

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

FOG Fats, Oils, and Grease 

GPD Gallons per day 

MGD Million gallons per day 

O & M Operations and Maintenance 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration  

POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

PPM Parts per million 

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board  

SARI Santa Ana River Inceptor 

SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 

SBVMWD San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system 

SSMP Sanitary Sewer Management Plan 

SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow 

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board  

TDS Total Dissolved Solids 

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load 

TSS Total Suspended Solids 

WDR Waste Discharge Requirements 

YVWD Yucaipa Valley Water District 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - April 1, 2015 - Page 141 of 141


	15-029 Recycled Water Exchange Agreement.pdf
	Governor Brown, Legislative Leaders Announce  $1 Billion Emergency Drought Package




